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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION 


In the Matter of ) 
) DOCKET NUMBERS: 

MAXFIELD AND OBERTON ) 
HOLDINGS, LLC) CPSC Docket No. 12-1 

) 
AND ) CPSC Docket No. 12-2 

) 
ZEN MAGNETS, LLC ) 

) Hon. Parlen L. McKenna 
Respondents. ) 

) 

NonCE OF REQUEST FOR CONSOLIDATION OF CPSC DOCKET 

NUMBERS 12-1 AND 12-2 BY AGENCY AND ORDER FOR RESPONDENT ZEN 


MAGNETS' RESPONSE 


The United States Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPS C) moved to 

consolidate CPSC Docket Numbers 12·1 and 12-2 on September 20,2012. (See Attached 

Motion). CPSC requests the cases be consolidated pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 1025.19 

because the above named proceedings involve similar issues. CPSC Docket Number 12

1 involves "high-powered, small rare earth magnets" that are distributed under the brand 

names BuckyballsCil and BuckycubesCil. CPSC Docket Number 12-2 involves "high

powered, small rare earth magnets." 

Since the above named CPSC cases are assigned to two different administrative 

law judges, the Acting Chief Administrative Law Judge will render the decision whether 

the cases will be consolidated. In accordance with 16 C.F.R. § 1025.23(c), a party has 

ten (to) days after service of a motion to respond. However, the Motion to Consolidate 

was only served on the respondent in CPSC Docket Number 12-1 (Maxfield and Oberton 

Holdings, LLC). Therefore, the undersigned is attaching the Motion to Consolidate to 



this Notice and providing Respondent Zen Magnets, LLC (CSPC Docket Number 12-2) 

with a copy ofthe Motion. Respondent Zen Magnets, LLC must respond to the Motion 

to Consolidate within ten (10) days ofservice ofthis Notice in accordance with the 

regulations. Respondent Maxfield and Oberton Holdings. LLC filed their response to the. 

Motion to Consolidate on September 28.. 2012. 

SO ORDERED. 

Hon. Parlen L. McKenna 
Acting Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Unite<;! States Coast Guard 

Done and Dated: October 5, 2012 at 
Alameda, California 



ALJ ATTACHMENT: 


AGENCY'S MOTION TO 

CONSOLIDATE 




UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFElY COMMISSION 


} 
In the Matt~r of 	 ) 

) 
MAXFIELD AND OBERTON HOLDINGS, LLC ) 

) 
) CPSC DOCKET NO. 12·1 
) 
) 

Respondent. 	 ) 
) 

COMPLAINT CQUNSEV'S MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE PROCEEDINGS 

Complaint Counsel' for the U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission ("CPSC") has 

initiated adjudi~tive proceedings against Maxfield and Oberton Holdings, LLC ("M&O'} 

(CPSC Docket No. t 2.1) and Zen Magnets, LLC ("Zen") (CPSC Docket No. 12:-2) requesting 

that the CPSC detennine that high-powered, small rare earth magnets (the "Subj~ct Products") 
, , 

imported and distributed by M&O and Zen present a substantial product hazard as defined in 

section 15(a)(2) of the Consumer Product Safety Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2064(a)(2). 

Complaint Counsel moves to consolidate. Docket 12-1 and Docket 12-2 and have the 

matters heard before this Court pursuant to Commission Regulations at 16 C.F.R. Part 1025.19 

because the proceedings "involve similar issues" that can be resolved more consistently and 

efficiently in consolidated proceedings than in separate proceedings. The facts and rationale 

supporting consolidation are set forth in the attached Memorandum ofPoints and Authorities in 

Support ofComplaint Counsel's Motion to Consolidate Proceedings. 

Wherefore, Complaint Counsel requests that the Presiding Officer gr~t this motion and 

consolidate these two administrative matters. 



Respectfully submitted, 

Assistant General Counsel 

.Division of Compliance' 

Office of the General Counsel 

U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission 
Bethesda. MD 20814 
Tel: (301) 504-7809 

Jennifer Argabright, Trial Attorney 

Setb Popkin, Trial Attorney 

Leah Wade, Trial Attorney 


Complaint Counsel 

Division ofComplhmce 

Office of the General Counsel 

U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission 
Bethesda, MD 20814 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION 


) 

In the Matter of ) 


) 

MAXFIELD AND OBERTON HOLDINGS, LLC ) 

) 
) CPSC DOCKET NO. 12~1 
) 
) 

Respondent. ) 
) 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF 
COMPLAINT COUNSEL'S MOTION TO CONSOLIDATE PROCEEDINGS 

On July 2S, '2012, Complaint Counsel for the U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission 

("CPSC") initiated this adjudicative proceeding against Maxfield and Oberton Holdings, LLC 

("M&O" or "Respondent") and requested that the Commission detennine that high-powered, 

small rare earth magnets imported and distributed by Respondent under the brand names 

Buckyballs® and Buckycubes® ("M&O Products") contain a defect that presents a substantial 

product hazard under section 'l 5(a)(2) of the Conswner Product Safety Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

,2064(a)(2). Complaint Counsel further requested that the Commission order, among other 

remedies, that M&O cease importation and distribution of the Subject Products and offer 

consumers a refund. 

On August 6, 20 12,Complaint Counsel filed an administrative complaint against Zen 

Magnets, LLC ("Zen") and requested that the Commission determine that high-powered, small 

rare earth magnets imported and distributed by Respondent'under the brand name Zen Magnets 

Rare Earth Magnetic Balls ("Zen Magnets" or "Zen Products") contain a defect that presents a 

substantial product hazard under section 15(a)(2) of the Consumer Product Safety Act. See 



CPSC Docket No. 12-2. Commiss,ion Regulations at 16 C.F.R. Part 1025 govern both 

proceedings. See 16 C.P.R. § 1025.1. Buckyballs, Buckycubes and Zen Magne~ are referred to 

herein as the "Subject Products". 

On September 18, 2012, Complaint Counsel filed an Amended Complaint in the instant 

matter, which included the original count alleging a violation of 15 U.S .C. §2064(a)(2), and 

added a second count alleging that the Subject Products fail to comply with ASTM 963-08 and 

ASTM 963-11 (the "Toy Standard") in violation of 15 U.S.C. §2064(a)(l). On September 20, 

2012, Complaint Counsel filed an Amended Gomplaint against Zen Magnets, LLC. In the Zen 

Magnets Amended Complaint, Complaint Counsel included the original count aUeging a 

violation of IS U.S.C. § 2064(aX2),.and added a second count alleging that the rare earth 

products sold by Zen Magnets fail to comply with the Toy Stan.daro and thus violate 1 S U.S.C. 

§2064(aX I). 

Commission Regulations at 16 C.F.R. § 1025.19 provide that. "two or more matters 

which have been scheduled for adjudicative proceedings and which involve similar issues may 
, , 

be consolidated for the purposes of hearing or Commission review." The Regulations further 

provide that "the proceedings may be consolidated to such extent and upon such terms'us may be 
, . 

proper." 16 C.F.R. § 1025.19. See a/so Preamble to 16 C.F.R. Part 1025,45 Fed. Reg. 29206, 

29207 (May I, 1980) (attached as Exhibit,A) ("The granting of broad discretion to the Presiding 

Officer can be seen throughout the provisions of these rules;").' The Regulatiolls thus provide 

I Although not controlling. federal case law also sives this Court broad discretion to consolidate the proceedings. 
!>H '11Iomas IffY. P(1l'III';3, LId. v. UIII/,dSloIU, 444 Fed. Appx. 190,193 (9th Cir.2011) ("The court appropriately 
detennined that 'the saving oCtlme and etTort consolidation would produce' outweighed 'any inconvenience, delay, 
or expense that it would c:il.use.' [internal citations omitted])." Although this proceedin, is p,overned by Commission 
Regulations and not the Pederal Rules of Civil Procedure ("FRCP"), "the Commission expe('.u that interpretations of 
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that proceedings involving similar issues, but also some party-specific issues, may be 

consolidated. 

The cases against M&O and Zen contain mUltiple similar issues, making consolidation 

appropriate. Both the M&O Products and the Zen Products consist ofaggregated masses of 

small, high-powered rare earth magnets that can cause. serious injury if ingested. The Subject 

Products share, at a minimwn, the following similarities: (l) th~y are nearly identical in terms of 

physical size, appearance, magnetic properties. and metallic composition; (2) they exhibit nearly 

identical behavior when manipulated; (3) they have the potential to cause severe inteStinal 

injuries if ingested; (4) children are li~ly to interact with both Subject Products in a way that 

puts the children at risk to ingest the magnets; and (5) the hazard presented from swal1o..ying the 


. Subject Products is a hidden hazard because parents and caregivers often cannot detehnine that 


the magnets have been swallowed until intestinal injury has already occurred. Because similar 


issues are presented in both the M&O and Zen cases, many of the issues to be litigated in this 

proceeding will apply equally to M&O and Zen. 

Moreover, Complaint Counsel anticipates that some of its expert witnesses will be used 

in both l?roceedings and will provide testimony on points common to both matters. Counsel for 

Respondents MetO and Zen will likely seek to depose the same fact witnesses at the agency, 

augmenting the rationale for consolidation. Consolidation will allow for th,e most efficient 

conduct of discovery and. if necessary, streamlining of hearings and, ultimately. trial 

proceedings. 

theu Rules by the Presiding Omeer will be guided by prlnelples stated and developed In ease law interpreting the 
Federal Rules ofCivil Procedure." Se, Preamble to 16 C.F.R. Part 1025, 45 Fed. Reg. 29206; 29207 (May I. 1980). 
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Consolidation would also avoid dupll~tion o~df'ort and would expedite the- resolution of 

both administrative proceedings. Consolidation would minimize the possibility of inconsistent 

adjudications ofcommon factual and legal issues, limit expenditures associated with litigating 

the matters in tWo separate forums, and lower expenditure oftime and resources for the parties. 

witnesses, and the Court.2 Consolidation ofthe matlers would be beneficial to both M&O and 

Zen, and Complaint Counsel submits that neither Respondent would suffer prejudice through 

consolidation of the proceedings.' 

Commission regulations give the Court broad latitude to order consolidation at any time 

during the proceedings and to determine which issues should be considered jointly. See 16 

C.P.R. § 1025.19 ("the proceedings may be consolidated to such extent and upon such tenus as 

. may be proper.")." Compl~nt Counsel requests at this juncture that the court order both matters 

be Consolidated before this court. and requests that further matters be consolidated as the ~arties 

may request and as the court deems appropriate. Consolidation of these matters before this court 

would provide a more and efficient and economical forum for resolution of two administrative 

~ UDder Ihe standard set forth in Arnold \/. East,,/1 Airlines, {nc., 611 F.2d 186, 193 (4th Cir. 1982), this case Is an 

excellent candidate for consolidation: 


. 	 The critical question for the district court In the final analysis was whether the specific risks of 
prejudice and Possible confilsiqn were ovefbome by the risle oflnconsistent adjudications of 
common ractual and legal Issues, the burden on parties, witnesses end available judicial resources 
posed by mUltiple lawsuits, the length of time required to conclude multiple luits as against a 
single one, and the relative expense to all concerned oftht single-trial. multiple-trial alternatives. 

'Complaint Counsel is aware that Commission Regulations at 16 c.r.1t § 1025.23(c) provide opposing counsel ten . 
days to opp~e this Motion, and is amenable to allowing Respondents' counsel the full ten days to tne any 
opposition if they SO request. However, this Court may pIIt consolidation even if Respondents oppose. ,See, I.g., 
Gonzala-Qui/v v. Coop.,aliva 0. Ahorro f CreriilO 0. {sabll/a,loSO r.lto. 91,93 CD.P.R. 1007) ("the fact that 
one or all of the parties object. or that the issue ofconsolidation II raised by the court sua sponl •• is not dispositive. 
The important question is whether the cases involve II common question of law or (act"). 

4 Set also PRCP 42(8)(1) (allowing for the consolidation or"any or all matters at Issue in the actions"); Simon v. 
Philip MOlT", Inc.• 200 P.R.D. 21, 27 (B.D.N.V.lool) (a court may order a separate trial ofany claim, ~-claim, 
cOUJlterelaim, or third-party claim, or of any separate Issue in those claims In a class acHon pr~eeding). 
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matters and would avoid having two courts in separate jurisdictions resolve the same issues in 

duplicative proceedings. 

Complaint Counsel hereby moves to consolidate the Zen proceeding (CPSC Docket 12-2) 

with the instant proceeding pursuant to § 16 C.P.R. § 1025.19 and have the matters heard by this 

court. Complaint Counsel respectfully requests that the Court consider this motion at the 

prehearing conference scheduled to be held on September 25,2012. See 16 C.F.R. §1025.21 ("at 

the preheating conference any or all of the following shall be considered: .,. motions for 

consolidation of proceedings''). 

Res~ctfully submitted, 

~~ 

Jennifer Argabright, Trial Attorney 
.Seth Popkin, Trial Attorney 
Leah \yade, Trial Attorney 

Complaint Counsel 
Division of Compliance 
Office of the General Counsel 
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission 
Bethesda. MD 20814 
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EXHIBIT A . 


PREAMBLE TO 16 C~F.R. PART 1025 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certifY that I have provided on this date, September 20,2012, the attached Motion to 
Consolidate Proceedings, Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and Proposed Order to the 
Secretary. the Presiding Officers, and all parties and participants of record in these proceedings 
in the following mann~r: 

Original by hand delivery to the Secretary ofthe U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission: 
Todd A. Stevenson 

Copy by certified mail and electronic mail to the Presiding Officer for In the Matter ofMaxfield 
and Oberton HoldIngs. llC. CPSC Docket No. 12-1: 

The Honorable Bruce T. ~mith 
U.S. Coast Guard 
Ha Ie Boggs Federal Building 
500 Poydras Street, Room 1211 
New Orleans. LA 70130-3396 
Email: nicole.e.simmons@uscg.mil 

Copy by certified mail and electronic mail to Attorney for Respondent Maxfield and Oberron 
Holdings LLC: 

Paul M. Laurenza 
Dykema Oossett PLLe 
Franklin Square Building 
1300 I Street, NW Suite 300 West 
Washington. DC 20005 

Copy by certified mail to Respondent Maxfield and Oberton Holding!J, LLC: 

Craig Zucker 

Maxfield & Oberton Holdings. LLC 

180 Varick Street 

Suite 212 , 

New York. New York J0004 


Courtesy Copies via first class mail ,and ,electronic mail: 

The Honorable Dean C. Metry 

Administrative Law Judge 

Presiding Officer, CPSC Docket 12-2 (In the Matter of Zen Magnets. LLC) 

U.S. Coast Guard 
u.s. Courthouse 
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601 25th St., Suite 508A 
Galveston, TX 77550 
Email: Janice.M.Emig@uscg.mil 

Shihan Qu -Respondent, CPSC Docket 12-2-(ln the Matter of Zen Magnets, LLC) 
Zen Magnets. LLC 
P.O. Box 1744 
Boulder, CO 80306-1744 
Email: shihanqU@gmail.com 

David C. Japha - Attorney for Respondent, CPSC Docket 12-2 (In the Matter of Zen Magnets, 

Ltc) 

The Law Offices of David-C. Japha, P.C. 

950 S. Cherry Street, Suite 912 

Denver, CO 80246 

Email: davidjapha@japhalaw.com . 
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION 


) 
In the Matter of ) 

) 
MAXFIELD AND OBERTON HOLDINGS, LLC ) 

) 
) CPSC DOCKET NO. 12·1 
) 
) 

Respondent. ) 

--------------------------~)' 

ORDER 

This matter having come before this Court on Complaint Counsel's Motion to 

Consolidate Proceedings, and upon consideration of the Motion and other pleadings of record . ' 

herein. it is by this Court. this __ day of__...:>. 2012. 

ORDERED that the adjudicative proceedings of CPSC Docket Nos, 12·1 and 12·2 are 

consolidated before this- Court for such purposes as the Court may deem appropriate. 

The Honorable Bruce T. Smith 
Presiding Officer 


